ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 28, 2011
8:02 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 3
"An Act providing for funding for school |unch and breakfast."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 3
SHORT TI TLE: FUNDI NG FOR SCHOOL MEALS

SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI, ELLIS, DAVIS, EGAN, FRENCH
KOOKESH, MCGUI RE, MENARD, PASKVAN, THOMAS

01/19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN

01/ 28/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR Bl LL W ELECHOWSKI

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 3.

CHRI STY HARVEY, Staff
Senator Bill W el echowski
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- January 28, 2011



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 3 on behal f
of the sponsor.

CARL ROSE, Lobbyi st

Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 3.

BRENT ROCK, Doctor and

Director

Student Nutrition Departnent

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 3.

DAVE JONES, Assistant Superintendent

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 3.

JORDI S CLARK, School Nurse

Anchor age School District

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 3.

CAROL COVEAU, Superi ntendent

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 3.

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director

D vi si on of School Fi nance

Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED)
Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the fiscal note for SB 3.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8.02:22 AM

COCHAIR JOE THOVAS called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Stevens, Co-Chair Meyer, and Co-
Chai r Thonss.

SB 3- FUNDI NG FOR SCHOCOL MEALS

8:02: 58 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- January 28, 2011



CO CHAI R THOVAS announced the consideration of SB 3. He inforned
the commttee that the original bill had a typographical error.

8: 03: 25 AM

CO- CHAI R MEYER noved to adopt [the commttee substitute (CS) for
SB 3] labeled 27-LS0020\B, as the working docunent. There being
no objection, version B was before the commttee.

CO CHAIR THOVAS explained that there was a one word change on
the first page, replacing "or" to "and".

8:04:21 AM

SENATOR BI LL W ELECHOWSKI, sponsor of SB 3, said that this bil
passed the Senate Education Standing Committee |ast year, but
was hung up in the House Finance Conmitt ee.

He said that nunmerous studies have docunented that elimnating
hunger in children increases school attendance and perfornmance
and decreases school violence and obesity. Alaska is one of
twel ve states that does not provide a state match to the federal
free and reduced price school lunch and breakfast program SB 3
woul d provide a state match for schools participating in this
program and encourage nore schools to provide nutritious neals
for underprivileged children

He expl ained that for every free and reduced priced breakfast or

lunch the federal program funds, the state will provide a match
under this bill of 35 cents per breakfast and 15 cents per
unch. Most school districts wll receive sone additiona

assistance through a funding fornula based on the applicable
School District Cost Factor for each district. He said that he
believes that while SB 3 will cost the state in the short term

Alaska will be better off for making this investnment in the
short and long term Dealing with these problenms now wll
prevent problens that will be nmuch nore costly to society in the

future, he added.

He continued that this bill has support from nunerous school
districts and hunger groups, which include: the Anchorage School
Board, the Fairbanks School Board and Association of Al aska
School Boards, the Cordova School District, the Kenai Peninsula
School District, the Chugach School D strict, the Al aska Food
Coalition, the Food Bank of Alaska, and the Alaska School
Nutrition Association.

8:07: 00 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- January 28, 2011



CHRI STY HARVEY, staff to Senator Wel echowski, sponsor of SB 3,
said the purpose of the bill is threefold:

* To try and get the program adopted by nore school s.

e To get nore children into the program where the program has
al ready been adopt ed.

e« To have nore nutritious food avail abl e.

She said there is a need for legislation like this in Al aska.
The nost recent statistics fromthe United States Departnent of
Agriculture (USDA) show that during at |east one point of the
year, one out of eight Al askan famlies struggle to put food on
the table. The Food Pantries have statistics that show that 4
out of 5 households who rely on food pantries for their food
have children under the age of 18.

She said she understands that one of the duties the |egislature
is tasked with is being good stewards of the state's noney. For
this reason this bill is twfold. The short term inmmediate
results include better school performance, feeding hungry Kkids,
and nmaintaining classroom order. The long term results include
| oner obesity patterns and getting children on the right path to
nove forward.

She noted that she has a large bibliography that supports
research behind this study. The bottomline is when children are
hungry they do a little worse in school and when they are fed
they do a lot better. She said the research she found nost
conpelling was the affect of school breakfast in inproving test
scores and achi evenents. For exanple, there was a study fromthe
American Journal of D seases in Children which showed that
scores on standardi zed tests inproved significantly when |arger
percentages of children ate breakfast. Oher tests showed
i nprovenent in math, |anguage, reading, general attention and
menmory function. Wen people are fed they concentrate better.
The USDA evaluation of the school breakfast program found that
kids that eat in the norning have a decrease in oppositiona
scores. These are the scores, she explained, that neasure
whet her students are nore likely to break rules, oppose
authority, or are quicker to anger in conparison to kids in the
sane age bracket.

8:10: 43 AM

M5. HARVEY said a separate study found higher rates of
attendance and |lower rates of chronic tardiness. Wwen food is
provided in school, nore kids are going to show up to partake in
those neals and stay for class. Finally, she explained, studies

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- January 28, 2011



have found that eating school breakfasts lead to better health
and |ower obesity rates. This was especially the case in
famlies that do not have enough to eat and where cheap food
tends to be higher in fat, sugar, sodium and chenicals. Recent
studies project that if the national weight problem continues as
it has been, obesity is projected to cost the United States an
estimated $344 billion in medical rel ated expenses by 2018.

She added that Al aska spends about $49,000 per year on prisoners
who enter the prison system It has been correlated that
i ndi vi dual s who have not graduated from high school are a |arger
percentage of the prison population. It seens, she said, that
there is a causal link in keeping children in school and | ooking
at sone of these long term sol utions.

She urged the conmittee to reach out to teachers to get nore
i nformation.

8:.12:41 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER asked how many school districts currently do not
have a | unch or breakfast program

M5. HARVEY replied that there are currently six school districts
that do not offer either the lunch or breakfast program Twenty
percent of the school districts that participate in the school
| unch program do not offer breakfast, which inpacts about 22,000
Al askan children. O these 22,000 children, 7,000 are from | ow
incone famlies. Currently, it costs the schools in total $58
million in outlay for the lunch and breakfast program of which
$32 mllion is reinbursed by the federal government. Mst of the
rest of the cost is made up by students who pay either full or

reduced price; however, there is still a gap of over $2 mllion
The schools then have to bring in noney from other progranms in
order to fill this gap. She added that the additional outlay for

many small or rural schools is a struggle.

8:14:55 AM

CARL ROSE, Lobbyist, Association of Alaska School Boards (AASB)
testified in support of SB 3. He said that recently the Chicago
Public School s passed a breakfast program for all students. The
anticipation of children being able to go to school and get food
is being received well in Chicago. There were 1,100 people who
signed a petition in opposition to this effort. By chance, those
who signed the petition came from schools where |less than 20
percent of the children qualified for free or reduced I|unches.
He explained that these individuals' concern was that it would
take out of instructional tinme. He said that 80 percent of

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- January 28, 2011



Chicago Public School students qualify for free and reduced
lunches and those that oppose a program like this cone from
af fluent districts.

He said that students' abilities in the classroom are enhanced
greatly, especially in young students, by spending nore tine in
school even if it is for neals. He continued that, in general
all indicators point to the inportance of focusing on early
chil dhood and el enentary age students because the benefits wll
follow children throughout the system

8:19:19 AM

BRENT ROCK, Doctor and Director, Student Nutrition Departnent,
Anchorage School District (ASD), testified in support of SB 3.
He noted that mnmuch of his testinony is in a letter which he and
Superintendent Carol Coneau drafted and sent to President
Stevens. He explained that even wth Aaska's wealth and
opportunity some famlies still struggle. Oten it 1is the
children that struggle the nost and the neals that are offered
at their schools are the only neals they receive for the day.
The funds included in this bill wll nmake it possible for
schools to enhance or add to an existing program or start a new
one. He said that ASD pledges to use all funds offered through
this legislation to enhance the food purchased for student
neal s.

8:23:13 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked how ASD avoids stigmatizing children who
recei ve breakfast and lunch for free, rather than paying for it.

DR. ROCK answered that he believes nost districts go about this
in a simlar manner as ASD. In his school district a student
punches in their student nunber so there is no way to
differentiate between a student who pays for a neal and a
student who receives a neal for free or at a reduced price. He
expl ai ned that though sone students may tell others kids about
receiving neals for free, ASD keeps the information conpletely
confidenti al .

8:24:39 AM

DAVE JONES, Assistant Superintendent, Kenai Peninsula Borough
School District, testified in support of SB 3. He said the Kenai
Peni nsula has over 9,000 students, of which 40 percent are
eligible for free or reduced cost neals. Over the last few
years, that percentage has been increasing by about 2 percent
each year. He said that across the state districts are
subsidi zing student nutrition services with a transfer from

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- January 28, 2011



their general fund. The reason that the Kenai Peninsula School
District has historically done this is because it believes there
is strong evidence of inproved academ c perfornmance related to
school neal s.

He said that with SB 3 the district would receive approximtely
$60, 000 in breakfast reinbursenents and about $80,000 in |unch
rei mbur senents.

8:27:26 AM

JORDI S CLARK, School Nurse, Anchorage School District, testified
in support of SB 3. She said as a health professional she knows
how critical to health and education it is to receive adequate
and nutritious food. She explained that from a physiol ogical
poi nt of view a brain needs energy to function, which works best
on energy from a recently eaten neal. O herwi se, the brain has
to rely on stored energy, which takes longer to netabolize and
is nore readily absorbed by nuscle tissue. This neans, she
expl ained, that a child that does not eat breakfast is |osing
the opportunity for an optinmally energized brain.

She pointed out that poverty is the |eading determ nate of both
health and educational outconmes. Having a |ower educational
| evel and economic level neans there is less availability to
food. Cetting food to children at school is critically inportant
so that they can have the best physiological position to be able
to absorb their education. She noted that her school, Sand Lake
El enentary, began a breakfast program two weeks ago and they are
serving over 100 neals per day. Already the kids in the norning
are calner, nore ready to go, and settling down faster. Their
educational day is beginning better and the program wll be
beneficial in the long term

8:32: 57 AM

CAROL  COMEAU, Superi nt endent , Anchorage  School District,
testified in support of SB 3. She said that the schools in
Anchorage who have the breakfast programreally benefit fromit
ASD would like to offer this program to nore schools but the
funding i ssue has a substantial inpact on them

8:34:28 AM
ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director of School Finance, Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED), presented the fiscal

note for SB 3. She said the fiscal note for the bill includes
the dollars calculated for the match for the existing federa
nmeals that are currently being served. It also includes the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- January 28, 2011



dollars for the consuner price index (CPlI) as directed in the
fiscal note. She said for FY2012 the cost would be $2, 143, 000.

8:35: 56 AM
CO-CHAIR MEYER asked what the federal contribution is and
whether it is a month-to-nonth match.

M5. NUDELMAN replied that for eligible students the federal
program nmatches the eligible federal neals. She explained that
with SB 3 the state would contribute 35 cents for breakfast and
15 cents for lunch where there is an eligible federal neal

CO- CHAIR MEYER said it would be good to know what the federa
funding contribution is. He explained that his concern is if the
federal governnent were to decide to cut back on funding then
the state would have to make up for that anount.

SENATOR FRENCH noted that the fact sheet from the bill sponsor
states that the federal government is now spending $32 million
dollars on the programin Al aska.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked Ms. Nudelman if she had heard whether there
was any jeopardy of |osing federal funding.

V5. NUDELMAN answer ed no.

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked if she would be prepared to explain how
sone of the existing expenses cone fromthe boroughs.

M5. NUDELMAN replied that she could give an overvi ew.

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked if she could break down how the noney
woul d be used.

M5. NUDELMAN answered that currently the breakfast prograns are
in a special revenue fund, which are funded by receipts from
paid nmeals and reinbursements from the federal program School
districts also transfer noney fromtheir operating fund into the
special revenue fund for child nutritional services if there is
a need. Statewide, $9 mllion is transferred from the operating
fund into the child nutritional funds. The spreadsheet for the
fiscal note for SB 3 also includes an estimate of the total
br eakfasts served.

She explained that the breakfast differential adjustnent takes

the current cost factors that are used in the foundation fornmul a
and reduces those by dividing by four. This gives a snaller cost

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- January 28, 2011



factor that is unique to each district. The cal cul ati on was done
based on the nunber of neals currently being served and applying
the cost factor in the bill in order to see what it would cost
for the state match

CO CHAIR THOVMAS said any other information or further exanples
of how this breaks down would be helpful, especially when it
goes to Senate Finance.

8:41: 36 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if the adm nistration has taken a position
on the bill.

M5. NUDELMAN answer ed no.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the bill is exactly the same as |ast
year's.

M5. HASTY replied that there is one small change. The origina
bill legally said 35 cents for breakfast or 15 cents for
breakfast. This is the legal way of saying that a school would
not have to do both. However, there was concern that this could
be m sconstrued down the line so "or" was replaced with "and".

SENATOR FRENCH asked if this changed the fiscal note.

M5. HASTY replied no.

8:43: 43 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS cl osed public testinony and announced he would

hold SB 3 in comittee.

8:44: 14 AM
There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Co- Chair Thomas adjourned the neeting at 8:44 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- January 28, 2011



